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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

City of Bay City, TeX8S 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bay City, Texas 
(the "City") 85 of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the City's management. Our responsibHity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Bay City Gas Company, which statements 
reflect total assets of $5,241,521 as of March 31, 2010, and total revenues of $2,981,136 for the year then 
ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and 
our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the component unit 
column, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditinq standards and standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Bay City Gas Company were not audited in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City as of September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 3, 2011, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of Its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internet control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
GovernmentAuditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results 
of our audit. 

MEMBE~:; OF
 
AI-'::RICM~ I'ISTITUJE0, CERJIFIEDi'UBlIC ACCOUNTANTS
 

T<-~.A~ SOCIETY 01' CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
 



The Honorable Mayor and Members
 
of the City Council
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 9 and 55 through 56 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, IS required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual major and nonmajor 
fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual major and nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the flnencial statements as a whole. 

March 3, 2011 

2
 



CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
September 30, 2010 

As management of the City of Bay City, Texas (tile "City"), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,2010. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

•	 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $27,888,623 
(net assets). Of this amount, $5,337,630 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

•	 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $7,212,540, an increase of $2,054,810 from the prior year. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $1,708,708, or 20.22% of total General Fund 
expenditures. The increase in fund balance for the City's governmental funds is attributable to the 20.,0 
debt issue. 

•	 The City's total net assets of the business-type activities increased $1,158,975, or 10.94%. The increase 
in the Water and Sewer Fund increased by $820,695, the Sanitation Fund increased by $230,696 and the 
Airport Fund increased by $107,584. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The 
City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental 
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Organization and Flow of Financial Section Information 

~ Independent Auditors' Report 
I Provides the opinion of the Independent Auditors on the fair -
I	 presenfation of the basic fin8ncial statements. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
This supplementary information is required for state and local government 

financial statements and is intended to provide a narrative infmduction 
and analysis. 
Pa es3109 l 

I Government-wide Financial I Fund Financial Statements 
Statements 

Provides information on the Provides information OJ
governmental and business-type financial position of specific funds 

activities of the primary of the primary govemment. 
govemment. 

Pages 10 to 13	 Pages 14 to 23 

C	 Notes to Financial Statements 
Provides a summary of significant accounting policies and related disclosures. 
__ Pages 24 to 54 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Government"wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

Statement of Net Assets 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

Statement af Activities 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (i.e., uncollected taxes and 
earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, construction for 
outside parties, public activities and recreation, and cultural arts and public benefits. The business-type activities 
of the City include water and sewer, sanitation and airport services. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the 
City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds or proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the qovemment-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintained nine individual governmental funds during the 2009-2010 fiscal year. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Community Construction Projects 
Fund, 2010 Capital Acquisition Fund, 2009 Capital Acquisition Fund, and the Community Development 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Governmental Funds - (Continued) 

Corporation which are considered major funds. Data from the other four governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Debt Service Fund. A Schedule of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - BUdget and Actual has been provided to demonstrate 
compliance with the appropriated budgets. 

Proprielary Funds 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the qovernrnent-wlde financial statements, only in a 
more detailed format. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the water/wastewater 
utility service, the sanitation services, and the airport operation; which are considered to be major funds of the 
City. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Informalion 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, required supplementary information is 
included which presents a budgetary comparison schedule for the City's General Fund. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary information. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCiAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City, net assets exceeded liabilities by $27,888,623 atthe close of the fiscal year 2010. 

By far, the largest portion of the City's net assets (78.90%) reflects its investment in capital assets (Le.. land, 
buildings, machinery and equipment), less a related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. 
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capita! assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capita! assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - (Continued) 

City of Bay City, Texas 

Net Assets 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Current and other assets s 8,685,098 s 5,877,005 s 2,512,155 s 3,228,711 s 11,197,251 s 9,105,716 

Capital assets (net) 22,905,138 23,206,704 16,285,160 16.561,883 39,190,298 39,768,587 

Other noncurrent assets 179,539 121,443 576,638 599,329 756,177 720.772 

Total assets 31,769,773 29,205.152 19,373,953 20,369,923 _,§,.!,J43,726 49,595,075 

Curren! liabilities 2,086,196 1,535,668 2,604,116 3,422,375 4,690,312 4,958,043 

Noncurrent liabilities 13,545,873 _'_1,113,796 5.018,918 ~58,252 18,564,791 17,472,048 

Total liabilities __15,632,069 12,649,464 __7.623,034 9,780,627 ~55,103 22,430,091 

Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 12,166,490 11,507,535 9,836,242 9,390,238 22,002,732 20,897,773 
Restricted 548,261 530,241 548,261 530,241 
Unrestricted 3,971,214 5,048,153 1,366,416 688,B17 5,337,630 5,736,970 

Total net assets s 16,137,704 s 16,555,688 s 11,750,919 s 10,609,296 $ 27,888,623 s 27,164,984 

The balance of unrestricted net assets, $5,337,630, may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to 
its citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of net assets for 
the primary government as a whole. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - (Continued)
 

Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by $766,578. Business-type activities increased the
 
City's net assets by $1,158,975. 

City of Bay City, Texas 

Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 

Activities Total 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

REVENUES 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and 
contributions 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 

Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Other taxes 
Unrestricted investment 

$ 2,698,689 

439,912 

3,414,585 
3.986.482 

860,750 
432,144 

$ 610,628 

2,172,387 

3,059,879 
4,607,569 

756,851 
469,088 

$ 8,108.680 

726,097 

$ 5,720,771 

361,082 

$ 10,807,369 

439,912 

726,097 

3,414,585 
3,986,482 

860,750 
432,144 

$ 6,331,399 

2,533,469 

3,059,879 
4,607,569 

756,851 
469,088 

earnings 

Miscellaneous 

14,401 
1,014,427 

26,809 
514,177 

4,478 
17,225 

9,639 
185,058 

18,879 
1,031,652 

36,448 
699,235 

Total revenues 12,861,390 12,217,388 8,856,480 6,276,550 21,717,870 18,493,938 

EXPENSES 
Genera) government 

Public safety 
Public works 
Const. for outside parties 
Public activities and rec. 
Cultural arts and pub. ben, 
Interest on long-term debt 
Water and sewer 
Sanitation 

Airport 

2,112,518 
3,771,477 
2,34D,844 
2,320,411 
1,929,843 

643,792 
583,214 

2,473,385 
4,099,853 
2,849,343 

1,788,850 
1,259,694 

381,608 
5,258,532 
1,952,979 

__411,863 

4,706,783 
113,933 
397,202 

2,112,518 
3,771,477 
2,340,844 
2,320,411 
1,929,843 

643,792 
583,214 

5,258,532 
1,952,979 

411,863 

2,473,385 
4,099,853 
2,849,343 

1,788,850 
1,259,694 

381,608 
4,706,783 

113,933 
397,202 

Total expenses 13,702,099 12,852,733 7,623,374 5,217,918 21,325,473 18,070,651 

Change in net assets 
before transfers (840,709) (635,345) 1,233,106 1,058,632 392.397 423,287 

Transfers 74,131 (842,299) (74,131) 842,299 

Change in net assets (766,578) (1,477,644) 1,158,975 1,900,931 392,397 423,287 

Net assets - beginning, 

as restated 16,904.282 18,381,926 10,591,944 8,691,013 27,496,226 27,072,939 

Net assets - ending $ 16,137,704 $ 16,904,282 $ 11,750,919 $ 10,591,944 $ 27,888,623 $ 27,496,226 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inrows, outflows, and balances 
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve 85 a useful measure af a government's net resources available for spending 
at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$7,212,540, an increase of $2,054,810 from the prior year. 

Approximately 99.66% of this total amount, $7,187,716 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available 
tor spending at the City's ofscrenon. The remainder of fund balance of $24,824 Dr .34% is reserved to indicate 
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for prepaid expenditures. 

The General Fund is the chief cperatinq fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund 
balance was $1,708,708. Unreserved fund balance represents 20.22% of total General Fund expenditures. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $156,961 during the current fiscal year. The increase 
was primarily due to the increase in tax revenue. 

PrDprietary Funds 

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted 10 $89,237, 
which is a decrease of $781,697 from the prior year. Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitation Fund amounted to 
$(16,559) al the end of the current fiscal year, which is an increase at $242,726 from the prior year. Unrestricted 
net assets of the Airport Fund amounted to $88,738 at the end of the current fiscal year, which is an increase of 
$11,570 from the prior year. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATiON 

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capital assets for its gDvernmental and business-type activities amounts to $39,190,298 
(net of accumulated depreciation) at the end of the current fiscal year. This investment in capital assets includes 
land, bUildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, water and sewer system, and land 
structured facilities. The total decrease in the City's investment in capital assets was 1.48%. 

City of Bay City, Texas 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 2009 

Business-type 
Activities 

2010 2009 2010 

Total 

2009 

Land 
Cons/ruction in progress 
Buildings and improvements 
Machineryand equipment 
Infrastructure 

s 1,874,437 
1,181,298 
5,198,187 
1,994,686 

12,656.530 

$ 1,731,627 
536,634 

5,627,721 
1,978,431 

13,338,889 

s 381,117 
189,443 
480,760 

3,035,698 
12,198,142 

$ 381,117 
924,139 
453,218 

3,198,515 
11,604,894 

s 2,255,554 
1,370,741 
5,678,947 
5,030,384 

24,854,672 

$ 2,112,744 
1,460,773 
6,080,939 
5,176,946 

24,943,783 

Total $ 22,905,138 $ 23,213,302 s 16,285,160 $ 16,561.883 $ 39,190,298 s 39,775,185 

Additional information on the City's capita! assets can be found in Note 5 of this report 

8 



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION - (Continued) 

Long-Term Debt 

During the 2010 fiscal year, the City had one new debt issue. The 2010 Certificates of Obligation were issued to 
provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital asset facilities, The City retired $2,199,090 of 
the prior outstanding debt Issues. The total outstanding debt of the governmental activities, excluding 
compensaled absences as of September 30, 2010 amounted to $10,179,431. The total outstanding debt of the 
business-type activities, excludinq compensated absences, as of September 30,2010 amounted to $6,448,918. 

Additional informationon the City's lonq-terrn debt can be found in Note 10. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The following factors were considered in preparing the City's buoqet for the 2010-2011 fiscal year. 

A nation-wide economic downturn has impacted consumer spending resulting in state-wide reductions in sales tax 
revenues. The total sales tax payments received by the City from the State Comptroller in fiscal year 2010 totaled 
$3,986,482. This amount is a decrease of $621,087 or 13.48% compared to the previous year. This decline was 
anticipated in the 2010 budget. For fiscal year 2011 the City has budgeted $4,180,000 of sales tax revenue, an 
increase of4,85%. 

The certified assessed taxable property valuations for the 2010 tax roll total $660 million with a lax rate of $0.50 
per $100 valuation for maintenance and operations and $,045 per $100 of valuation for interest and sinking. The 
tax rate increased $0.015666 over last year. The 2010 budget was the first ever dedicated debt service tax, 
thereby establishing a Debt Service fund to provide funding toward the 2009 issue. The City Issted the Series 
2010 certificates which will also be funded in part by the debt service tax, 

In 2010 the City established the Sanitation Fund which provides solid waste collection services for the City. The 
initial year of operation resulted in an increase in the funds net assets of $230,696. 

Reguests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest 
in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Office, 1901 Fifth Street, Bay City, Texas 
77414 
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Basic Financial Statements 



CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENTOF NET ASSETS 
September3D, 2010 

ASSETS 
Currentassets
 

Cash and cash equivalents
 
Investments
 
Receivables (net)
 
Internal balances
 
Due from other governments
 
Prepaids
 
Inventory
 
Restricted assets
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Tetal currentassets 
Noncurrent assets 

Capital assets 
Land and other assets not being 
depreciated 

Buildings, improvements, and 
equipment (net) 

Deferred expenses (net) 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

s 7,251,813 

920,304 
55,556 

351,942 
84,824 
20,657 

8,685,096 

3,055,735 

19,849,403 
179,539 

23,084,677 

31,769,773 

10 

Component 
Primary Government Unit 

Bay City 
Business-type Gas 

Activities Total Company 

s 1,519,173 $ 

1,029,071 
(55,556) 

19,467 

2,512,155 

570,560 

15,714,600 
576,638 

16,861,798 

19,373,953 

8,770,986 

1,949,375 

$ 1,696,057 
1,259,032 

376,673 

351,942 
84,824 
40,124 

60,375 
59,178 

11,197,251 

193,407 
204,921 

3,849,643 

3,626,295 4,732 

35,564,003 
756,177 

39,946,475 

51,143,726 

1,387,146 

1,391,878 

5,241,521 



Primary Government 
Component 

Unit 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

Bay City 
Gas 

Company 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to other governments 
Deposits 
Accrued compensated absences 
Unearned revenue 
Current portion of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

$ 623,224 
248,637 
127,641 
55,463 
20,998 

173,611 

836,622 

2,086,196 

$ 287,261 
113,841 

15,490 
13,651 

501,507 
63,764 

178,602 
1,430,000 

2,604,116 

$ 910,485 
362,478 
143,131 
69,114 

522,505 
237,375 
178,602 

2,266,622 

4,690,312 

$ 141,044 
1,002 

142,046 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Noncurrentportion of long-term 
obligations 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

13,545,873 

13,545,873 

5,018,918 

5,018,918 

18,564,791 

18,564,791 

344,955 

344,955 

Total liabilities 15,632,069 7,623,034 23,255,103 487,001 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, netof 

related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted netassets 

12,166,490 

3,971,214 

9,836,242 
548,261 

1,366,416 

22,002,732 
548,261 

5,337,630 

1,391,878 

3,362,642 

Total net assets $ 16,137,704 $ 11,750,919 $ 27,888,623 $ 4,754,520 

Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the year ended September 30, 2010 

Function/Programs Expenses 

Primary Government 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 2,112,518 
Public safety 3,771,477 
Public works 2,340,844 
Construction for outside parties 2,320,411 
Public activites and recreation 1,929,843 
Cultural arts and public benefits 643,792 
Interest on long-term debt 583,214 

Total governmental activities 13,702,099 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer 5,258,532 
Sanitation 1,952,979 
Airport 411,863 

Total business-type activities 7,623,374 

Total primary government $ 21,325,473 

Component Unit 
Bay City Gas Company $ 2,845,256 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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Program Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 240,650 
406,931 

1,847,562 
203,546 

$ 31,993 

124,833 

283,086 

s 

2,698,689 439,912 

5,730,656 
2,176,550 

201,474 

488,124 

237,973 

8,108,680 726,097 

$ 10,807,369 $ 439,912 $ 726,097 

$ 2,885,282 $ $ 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Property taxes, levied for debt service 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Other taxes and fees 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning, as restated 

Net assets - ending 



$ 

3,218,039 
196,546 

3,986,482 
860,750 
432,144 

14,401 
1,014,427 

74,131 

9,796,920 

(766,578) 

16,904,282 

16,137,704 

4,478 
17,225 

__(74,131) 

(52,428) 

1,158,975 

10,591,944 

$ 11,750,919 $ 

3,218,039 
196,546 

3,986,482 
860,750 
432,144 

18,879 
1,031,652 

9,744,492 

392,397 

27,496,226 

27,888,623 $ 

95,854 

95,854 

135,880 

4,618,640 

4,754,520 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
September 30, 2010 

Community 2010 
Construction Capital 

General 
Projects 

Fund 
Acquisition 

Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net) 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 

s 1,929,736 
637,774 
266,530 

42,000 

s 522,883 
243,473 

s 2,754,389 

Prepaid expenditures 24,824 
Inventory 

Total assets $ 2,900,864 $ 766,356 $ 2.754,389 

L1ASILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenditures 

$ 376,216 
229,175 

$ 120,285 
2,287 

$ 31,657 

Security deposits 
Due to other governments 55,463 
Accrued interest 
Deferred revenue 506,478 

Total liabilities 1,167,332 122,572 31,657 

Fund balances 
Reserved for oreperos 24,824 
Unreserved, undesiqnated reported in: 

General fund 1,708,708 
Special revenue funds 
Debt service fund 
Capital project funds 643,784 2,722,732 

Total fund balances 1,733,532 643,784 2,722,732 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2.900.864 s 766.356 $ 2,754,389 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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2009 
Capital 

Acquisition 
Fund 

Community 
Development 
Corporation 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 313,899 

$ 313,899 

$ 1,469,337 

85,412 

60,000 
20,657 

$ 1,635,406 

$ 261,569 
39,057 

13,556 

$ 314,182 

$ 7,251,813 
920,304 
351,942 

55,556 
84,824 
20,657 

$ 8,685,096 

$ 36,568 

36,568 

$ 28,610 
17,175 

45,785 

$ 29,888 

20,998 

8,917 
8,839 

68,642 

$ 623,224 
248,637 

20,998 
55,463 

8,917 
515,317 

1,472,556 

24,824 

277,331 
277,331 

1,589,621 

1,589,621 

220,577 
5,431 

19,532 
245,540 

1,708,708 
1,810,198 

5,431 
3,663,379 
7,212,540 

$ 313,899 $ 1,635,406 s 314,182 s 8,685,096 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNO BALANCE TO NET ASSETS 
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
September 30, 2010 

Total governmental fund balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because: 

Property taxes, fines and weedy lot receivables will be collected this year, but are 
not avaiab'e soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and 
therefore are deferred in the funds. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds when purchased or constructed. The cost of these assets is 
$39,930,312 and the accumulated depreciation is $17,025,174. 

Othernoncurrent assets (for example, debt issuance costs) used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources, and therefore are not reported in 
governmental funds. The cost of these assets is $194,478 and the accumulated 
amortization is $14,939. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore 
are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist 
of: 

Bonds and certificates payable 

Notes payable 

Accrued interest payable 

Capital leases payable 

Compensated absences 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 7,212,540 

515,317 

22,905,138 

179,539 

$ (10,353,042) 

(3,913,401) 

(118,724) 

(116,052) 

__(173,611 ) (14,674,830) 

$ 16,137,704 



CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the year ended September 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Fees and charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Investmentincome 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

General 

$ 7,105,667 
9,813 

402,318 
308,136 
156,826 

5,352 
834,289 

8,822,401 

$ 

Community 
Construction 

Projects 
Fund 

1,847,562 

1,600 

1,849,162 

$ 

2010 
Capital 

Acquisition 
Fund 

2,197 

2,197 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Public safety 
Publicworks 
Public activities and recreation 
Cultural arts and public benefits 

Debt service 
Bond issuance costs 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Debt issuance 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning 

of year, as restated 

Fund balances at end of year 

1,859,213 
3,692,061 
1,050,523 
1,182,124 

98,675 

334,719 
231,929 

8,449,244 

373,157 

75,145 
(291,341) 
(216,196) 

156,961 

1,576,571 

$ 1,733,532 

2,182,641 
2,182,641 

(333,479) 

144,760 

144,760 

(188,719) 

832.503 

$ 643,784 $ 

90,183 

407,022 
497,205 

(495,008) 

3,300,000 

(82,260) 
3,217,740 

2,722,732 

2,722,732 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

2009 
Capital 

Acquisition 
Fund 

874 

874 

Community 
Development 
Corporation 

$ 934,182 

64,960 

5,345 
221,025 

1,225,512 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 607,080 

65,900 

633 
117,618 
791,231 

$ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

8,646,929 
9,813 

402,318 
2,286,558 

156,826 
14,401 

1,174,532 
12,691,377 

$ 

821,888 
821,888 

(821,014) 

(821,014) 

1,098,345 

277,331 

254,977 

412,553 

219,512 
172,299 

1,059,341 

166,171 

166,171 

1,423,450 

$ 1,589,621 

545,117 

217,500 
80,162 

157,600 
1,000,379 

(209,148) 

290,327 
(62,500) 

227,827 

18,679 

226,861 

$ 245,540 $ 

2,114,190 
3,692,061 
1,050,523 
1,594,677 

643,792 

90,183 
771,731 
484,390 

3,569,151 
14,010,698 

(1,319,321) 

3,300,000 
510,232 

(436,101) 
3,374,131 

2,054,810 

5,157,730 

7,212,540 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATlON OF THEGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENTOF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES INFUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For theyear ended September30, 2010 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 2,054,810 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
differentbecause: 

are 

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but 
they should be shown as increases in capital assets in the government-wide 
financial statements. TIle net effect of removing the 2009/2010 capital outlays is 
to increase netassets. 1,474,571 

The net effect of various transactions involving capital 
adjustments, and dispositions) is to decrease net assets. 

assets (i.e. transfers, 
(337) 

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense on the governmental funds since it 
does not require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the 
current year's deprecation is to decrease net assets. (1,782,398) 

Current year proceeds and payments on long-term debt are other financing 
sources and expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they serve to 
increase or reduce long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial 
statements. In the current year, these amounts consist of: 

Proceeds of certificates 

Bond and certificate principal retirement 

Note payable principal retirement 

Capita/lease principal retirement 

$ (3,300,000) 

462,500 

266,340 
53,845 (2,517,315) 

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the 
City's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available" revenues and are 
deferred in the governmental funds. Similarly, other revenues are not currently 
available at year-end and are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 

Property taxes 

Other revenues 

47,032 
(19,492) 27,540 

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. These activities consist of: 

Net increase in debt issue costs 

Increase in accrued interest 

Decrease in bond premium 

Increase in compensated absences 

75,244 

(118,724) 

23,885 

__ (3,854) (23,449) 

Change in net assets of governmental activities s (766,578) 

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
September 30,2010 

Business-type Activities 

Water 
and Sewer Sanitation Airport Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,435,316 $ 42,054 $ 41,803 $ 1,519,173 

Receivables (net) 982,696 46,375 1,029,071 

Due from other funds 187,119 187,119 

Inventory 2,271 17,196 19,467 

Total current assets __2,418,012 231,444 105,374 2,754,830 

Noncurrent assets 
Land and other assets not being 

depreciated 357,155 213,405 570,560 

Buildings, improvements, and 
equipment (net) 12,308,016 2,536,982 869,602 15,714,600 

Deferred expenses (net) 482,024 94,614 576,638 

Total noncurrent assets 13,147,195 2,631,596 1,083,007 16,861,798 

Total assets 15,565,207 2,863,040 __',188,381 19,616,628 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 202,034 76,708 8,519 287,261 

Accrued expenses 89,697 21,467 2,677 113,841 

Due to other funds 200,675 42,000 242,675 

Due to other governments 55 13,596 13,651 

Accrued interest payable 9,671 5,819 15,490 

Customer deposits 496,902 4,605 501,507 

Accrued compensated absences 58,504 4,425 835 63,764 
Deferred revenue 178,602 178,602 
Current portion of bonds and certificates 

payable 1,205,000 225,000 1,430,000 

Total current liabjities 2,262,538 567,617 16,636 2,846,791 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Bonds and certificates payable (net) 2,915,541 2,103,377 5,018,918 

Total noncurrent ,liabilities 2,915,541 2,103,377 5,018,918 

Total liabilities 5,178,079 2,670,994 16,636 7,865,709 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,544,630 208,605 1,083,007 9,836,242 

Restricted for debt service 548,261 548,261 

Unrestricted net assets 1,294,237 (16,559) 88,738 1,366,416 

Total net assets s 10,387,128 $ 192,046 s 1,171,745 s 11,750,919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

20 



CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the yearended September30, 2010 

Busjness~type Activities 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Rents and miscellaneous fees 
Total operating revenues 

Water 
and Sewer 

$ 5,658,696 
71,960 

5,730,656 

Sanitation 

$ 2,176,550 

2,176,550 

Airport 

$ 133,137 
68,337 

201,474 

s 

Total 

7,96B,383 
140,297 

8,10B,68o 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Waler and sewer system 
Sanitation expenses 
Airport expenses 
Depreciation 
Total operating expenses 

4,212,888 

787,225 
5,000,113 

1,586,188 

282,991 
1,869,179 

304,699 
107,16A 
411,863 

4,212,888 
1,586,188 

3OA,699 
1,177,380 
7,281,155 

Operating income (1055) before 
nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
and contributions and transfers 730,543 307,371 (210,389) 827,525 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

4,304 
10,274 

(258,419) 
(243,841) 

174 
6,951 

(83,800) 
(76,675) 

4.478 
17,225 

(342,219) 
(320,516) 

Income (lass) before contributions and transfers 486,702 230,696 (210,389) 507,009 

Contributions and transfers 
Capital contributions 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

488,124 
98,700 

(252,831) 

237,973 
80,000 

726,097 
178,700 

(252,831) 

Total contributions and transfers 333,993 317,973 651,966 

Change in net assets 820,695 230,696 107,584 1,158,975 

Total net assets at beginning of year, as restated 9,566,433 (38,650) 1,064,161 10,591,944 

Total net assets at end of year $ 10,387,128 $ 192,046 $ 1,171,745 $ 11,750919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARYFUNDS 
Far the year ended September 30, 2010 

Business-type Activities 

Water 
and Sewer Sanitation Airport Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 
Net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities 

s 5,722,336 
(2,132,668) 
(2,047,904) 

1,541,764 

s 2,176,667 
(1,447,239) 

(107,039) 

622,389 

s 199,377 
(185,081) 

(70,176) 

(55,880) 

$ 8,098,380 
(3,764,988) 
(2,225,119) 

2,108,273 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfers (to) from other funds 
Borrowings (repayments) to other funds 
Miscellaneous income (expense) 
Increase(decrease) in customer deposits 

(154,131) 
14,586 
10,274 
54,995 

(458,000) 
6,951 

80,000 

135 

(74,131) 
(443,414) 

17,225 
55,130 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities (74,276) (451,049) 80,135 (445,190) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATEO FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on long-term debt 

Interest paid 
Net cash provided (used) by capital and 

related financing activities 

(106,248) 
(1,195,000) 

(133,921) 

(1,435,169) 

(600,411) 
(217,500) 

(74,065) 

(891,976) 

(706,659) 
(1,412,500) 

(207,986) 

(2,327,145) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment income 4,304 174 4,478 
Net cash provided (used) by 

investing activities 4,304 174 4,478 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 36,623 (720,462) 24,255 (659,584) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~8,693 762,516 17,548 2,178,757 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,435,316 $ 42,054 $ 41,803 $ 1,519,173 
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Business"type Activities 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 

Water 
and Sewer 

$ 730,543 

Sanitation 

$ 307,371 $ 

Airport 

(210,389) $ 

Total 

827,525 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 10 
netcash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
Bad debtexpense 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 

Totaladjustments 

787,225 
30,922 

(8,320) 

8,956 

(7,562) 

811,221 

293,504 

5,000 
(2,271 ) 

(17,069) 
35,063 
(3,634) 
4,425 

315,018 

107,164 
20,909 

(2,099) 
22,992 

6,518 
(207) 

(76§ 

154,509 

1,187,893 
51,831 

(5,419) 
20,721 
(1,595) 
34,856 
(3,634) 
(3,905) 

1,280,748 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities $ 1,541,764 $ 622,389 $ (55,880) $ 2,108,273 

Noncash capital and related financing activities 
Assets acquired from contributions $ 488,124 $ 237,973 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
23 



This page intentionally left blank. 



Notes to Financial Statements 





CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO FINANCiAL STATEMENTS 
September 30,2010 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Bay City, Texas (the "City") \5 an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas 
governed by an elected council and a mayor and is considered a primary government. As required 
bygenerally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America, these financial 
statements have been prepared based on considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of 
component units, which are other entities or organizations that are financially accountable to the 
City. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the 
government's operations, and as a result, data from these units are combined with data of the 
primary government. The City considers the Bay City Community Development Corporation a 
blended component unit. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in 
a separate column in the government-wide statements to emphasize that they are legally separate 
from the primary government. Based on these considerations, the City's financial statements 
include the Bay City Gas Company as a discretely presented component unit. The City's blended 
component unit has a September 30 year-end and the City's discretely presented component unit 
has a March 31 year-end. No other entlties have been included in the City's reporting entity. 
Additionally, as the City is considered a primary governmant for financial reporting purposes, its 
activities are not considerad a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. 

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations or functions in 
the City's financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by GAAP. These same criteria 
are evaluated in considering whether the City is a part of any other governmental or other type of 
reporting entity. The overriding elements associated with prescribed criteria considered in 
determining thatthe City's financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it 
has a separately elected governing body; it is legally separate; and it is fiscally independent of other 
state and local governments. Additionally prescribed criteria under GAAP include considerations 
pertaining to organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and 
considerations pertaining to organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship 
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The component units discussed below are included in 
the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships 
with the City. 

Blended Component Unit 

~City Community Development CorOQration 

The Bay City Community Development Corporation (the "Corporation") has been included in the 
reporting entity as a blended component unit. In 1994, the Corporation was created by the City 
under the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 for the purpose of promoting, and 
developing commercial, industrial and manufacturing enterprises and to promote and encourage 
employment and public welfare within the City. The Board of Directors consists of seven members, 
four of which are apponted by the City Council. Services provided by the Corporation almost 
exclusively benefit the City in that the development of the area within the community increases the 
tax bases, resulting in additional tax revenue to the City. City Council approval is required for 
annual budgets and bonded debt issuance. In the event of dissolution, net assets of the 
Corporation shall be conveyed to the City. The operations of the Corporation are presented as a 
governmental fund type. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

A. Reporting Entity - (Continued) 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Bay City Gas Company 

The Bay City Gas Company (the "Gas Company") has been included in the reporting entity as a 
discretely presented component unit. The Gas Company provides for the distribution of natural gas 
services throughout the City, is controlled bya permanent three-person board, which was originally 
appointed by Victor LeTulle, who contributed the gas distribution system to the City in 1938. The 
board is comprised of two lifetime members with the City's mayor serving as the third member. The 
board is self-perpetuating with the lifetime members appointing their successors. The board is 
responsible for the daily operations and policies of the gas utility. The Gas Company is not 
separately incorporated and utilizes the City's municipal exemption from property, income and sales 
tax. 

Historically, the Gas Company has made contributions from its profits to the City for capital 
improvements. Also included as part of these contributions are gas services to City facilities and 
volunteer firemen, which are not billed by the Gas Company. For the year ended March 31, 2010 
these contributions totaled $404,000. Complete financial statements for the Gas Company may be 
obtained from its administrative offices. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (l.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in netassets) report information on all nonfiduciary activities of the City and its component 
unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, and intergovernmental revenues 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reportad separately from its legally 
separate component units. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES· (Conlinued) 

C. MeasurementFocus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, 85 are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of relatedcash flows. Propertytaxesare recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized 85 revenue as soon 
as ail eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liabUity is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, deb! service axpenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and [udqments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when 
cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The 
City has four Capital Project Funds, three of which have been reported as major funds. The 
Community Construction Projects Fund is used to account for the various construction 
projects within the City. The 2010 Capital Acquisition Fund is used to account for the 
proceeds and expenditures of the 2010 debt issue. Finally, the2009 Capital Acquisition Fund 
is used 10account for the expenditures related to the 2009 debt issue. 

The Community Development Corporation accounts for tha resources used to finance 
community and economic development projects within Ihe City. The principal source of 
revenue of this fund are sales taxes. 

The City reports the follow.ing major proprietary funds: 

Enterprise Funds are usad to account for operations: 1) that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises -where the intent of lhegoverning body is that 
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or 
2) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - (Continued) 

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City related to Its sewage 
treatment plant and water distribution system, 

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operation of the City's sanitation service. The principal 
sources of revenues are charges to customers. 

The Airport Fund accounts for the operation of the City's airport 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for 
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generalfy are followed in both the government-Wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance ofGASB. Governments also 
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities 
and enterprise funds, SUbject to this same limitation. The City has elected notto follow subsequent 
private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between various functions of the 
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for 
the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants far goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessmants. Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. likewise, ganeral revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operatIng revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds and internal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. The Water and Sewer Fund also recognizes as operating 
revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -(Continued) 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements. 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund using the 
same basisof accounting as for financial reporting. All annualappropriations lapseat year-end. 
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. 
Expenditure requests, which would requirean increasein the total budceted appropriations must 
be approved byCityCouncil through a formal budgetamendment. At any time in the fiscalyear, 
the Councilmaymakeemergencyappropriations to meeta pressing need for publicexpenditure 
in order to protectthe publichealth, safety, orwelfare. The Council has the powerto transferany 
unencumbered funds allocated bythe budget from oneactivity, function or department, to another 
activity function, or department, to re-estimate revenues and expenditures, and to amend the 
budget. 

Management has the authority to transfer available funds allocated by the budget from one 
function or activityto another function or activitywithin the same department. 

In cooperation with the department heads of the City, the City Finance Director prepares an 
annual budget for theGeneral Fund, certain SpecialRevenueFunds and the Debt Service Fund 
for the ensuing fiscalyear, in a form and styleas deemed desirablebyCouncil. The budgets, as 
adopted must set forth the appropriations for services, functions, and activities of thevariousCity 
departmentsand agencies, and shall meetall fund requirements providedby law and applicable 
bond covenants. 

E. Deposits and investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturitiesof three monthsor less from thedate of acquisition. 

The City may investitsexcess funds in any instrumentsauthorized bythe PublicFundsInvestment 
Act of Texas. Investments authorized under this Act include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Obligationsof the UnitedStates or its agenciesand instrumentalities; direct obligations of the State 
of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by 
a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is 
guaranteedby an agencyor instrumentalityof the United States; otherobligations, the principal and 
interestof which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith andcredit 
of, the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities; 
certificatesof depositissuedby a stateor financial institutiondomiciled in the Stateof Texaswhich 
is guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or otherwise 
secured; and certain repurchase agreements. 

As of September 30, 2010, the City has adopted a formal investment policy. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Confinued) 

F. Receivables and Pavables 

Activity between funds that arerepresentative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds". Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 

All trade a-id property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollec1ibles. Property tax 
receivables includeunpaid property taxesat year-end alongwith penalties and interestassessed on 
theseunpaid taxes. The allowance on the unpaidpropertytaxes is equal to 10%of theoutstanding 
property taxes and Ihe auowance on the penalties and interest is equal to 70% of the assessed 
amount. 

G. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Estimated cost is used when 
actual cost figures are not available. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded 
as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting penoos. These payments 
are reported as deferred expenditures (governmental funds) or prepaid expenses (proprietary 
funds) in the fund financial statements and as deferred expenditures/expenses in the qovemrnent­
wide financial statements. 

H. Capital Assets 

capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide statement of net assets. 
The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at tile date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest is capitalized on capital assets of buslnoss-type activities when acquired with tax-exempt 
debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by Offsetting interest expense incurred 
during the period of construction until completion of the project with interest earned on invested 
proceeds over the same period. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 

Buildings 39 
Improvements other than buildings 39 
Water and wastewater distribution system 25-50 
Machinery and equipment 5-15 
Public domain infrastructure 25-50 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

I. Compensated Absences 

The Cityallowstwelve dayssick leave peryear for each full-timeemployeeandfurther allowseach 
employeeto accumulate an unlimited number of days of sick leave. Upon termination, there is no 
provision to pay the employee for accumulated sick days. 

The City's employees earn vacation which may be either taken or accumulated, up to certain 
amounts. Only earned leave is paid upon termination or retirement. A liability for this amount is 
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee 
resignations and retirements. 

All compensated absencespay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. 

J. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and in proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements. long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicablegovernmental activities, business-type activities, orproprietary fund typestatementof net 
assets. Bond premiumsanddiscounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferredand amortizedover 
the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicablebond premium ordiscount. Bondissuance costs are reportedas deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. Losses or gains on refunding are capitalized and 
amortized over the shorter life of the new issuance or the life on existingdebt. 

In the fundfinancial statements, governmental fundtypesrecognize bondpremiumsand discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs. during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is 
reportedas other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
debt service expenditures. 

K. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are notavailable for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. Designations offund balance, if any,representtentative managementplans 
that are subject to change. 

L. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the government-wide andfund financial statements in conforrnitywith generally 
acceptedaccounting principles requires theCity tomakeestimates andassessments thataffect the 
reportedamounts of assetsand liabilitiesand disclosure of contingentassets and liabilities at the 
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgetary Compliance 

There were seven departments where expenditures exceeded the amount appropriated during the fiscal 
year 2009-2010. 

Final Negative 
General Fund - Department Budget Actual Variance 

City secretary $ 115,365 $ 134,561 $ (19,196) 
Administration and council 187,548 194,398 (6,850) 
Municipal court 228,485 246,864 (18,379) 
Police 3,382,324 3,453,801 (71,477) 
Cityservice center 56,629 63,851 (7,222) 
Library 267,570 282,363 (14,793) 
Debt service principal 324,719 334,719 (10,000) 

These expenditures were funded by an available fund balance in the General Fund. 

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract 
pursuant to the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. The depository bank pledges securities which 
comply with state law and these securities are held for safekeeping and trust with the City's and the 
depository bank's agent bank. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the 
depository bank's dollar amount of FDIC insurance. 

As of September 30,2010, the City had the following investments: 

Weighted Average 
Investment Type Amortized Cost Maturity (Days) 

Public Funds Investment Pool
 
TexPool $ 5,403,796 34
 

The pool operates in a manner consistent with the Securities and Exchange Commission's (SEC) 
Rule 2(a)(7) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 but is not registered with the SEC as an investment 
company. Instead, the regulatory oversight for the pool is the State of Texas. The pool uses amortized 
cost ratherthan market value to report net assets to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of 
the position in these pools is the same as the value of the shares in each poor. 

Interest Rate Risk 

In accordance with theCity's investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by 
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than one year from the time of 
purchase. TexPool's weighted average maturity cannot exceed 60 days. 
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued) 

Credit Risk 

The investmentpool operates in full compliance with the Public Funds JnvestrnentAct. TexPool is rated 
AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City's investment policy requires that the investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of 
investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and financial institutions to reduce the risk of loss resulting 
from overconcentration of assets in a specific class of investments, specific maturity, or specific user. At 
year-end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk ~ Deposits 

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned to it. The City's investment policy requires that deposits at financial institutions be insured by the 
FDIC and/orcollateralized by securities pledged to the City by the depository in an amount equal to at least 
110percentof thecanying valueof depositsheld. During the fiscal year and at year-end, all depositsheldin 
the depository bankwere fully collateralized and therefore the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments 

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be 
able to recover thevalue of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. All of the City's investments are invested in TexPool and it has no custodial credit risk. 
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NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at September 30,2010, consist of the following: 
Community 

Construction 
Projects Water Airport Nonmajor 

General Fund and Sewer Fund Funds Total 

Gross receivables: 
Accounts $ 68,189 $ 243,473 $1,030,968 $ 61,760 $ $1,404,390 
Ad valorem taxes 771 ,850 11,053 782,903 
Franchise taxes 60,733 60,733 
Other 2,374 30,218 32,592 

Total gross 

receivables 903,146 243,473 1,030,968 61,760 41,271 2,280,618 

Less: allowances 265,372 48,272 15,385 2,214 331,243 

Total net receivables $ 637,774 $ 243,473 $ 982,696 $ 46,375 $ 39,057 $1,949,375 

The City's governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The governmental funds 
alsodefer revenuerecognition in connection with resources that have been received,but not yet earned. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue 
reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Unavailable Unearned Total 

General Fund
 
Ad valorem taxes $ 506,478 $ $ 506,478
 

Debt Service Fund
 

Ad valorem taxes 8,839 8,839
 

$ 515,317 $ $ 515,317 

The City's property taxes are levied annually on October 1'" on the basis of the Appraisal District's 
assessed values as of January 1~t of that calendar year. Appraised values are established by the 
Appraisal District at market value and assessed at 100% of appraised value. The City's property taxes 
are billed and collected by the Matagorda County Tax Office and are due and payable On January 31$1. 
Such taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are levied and become delinquent with an 
enforceable lien on the property on January 1': of the subsequent calendar year. 

For the current year, the City levied property taxes of $0.52934 per $100 of assessed valuation, for 
maintenance and operations, $0.49334 and interest and sinking, $0.030. The resulting adjusted total tax 
levy was $3,421,270 on the total adjusted taxable valuation of $646,327,508 for the 2009 tax roll. 
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS 

The City's capital assets activity for the yearended September 30,2010, was as fouows: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

$ 1,731,627 
536,634 

2,268,261 

$ 142,810 
925,350 

1,068,160 

$ 
280,686 

280,686 

$ 1,874,437 
1,181,298 

3,055,735 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Machinery and equipment 
BUildings 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

5,746,915 
7.958,159 

22,702,343 

36,407,417 

406,411 

280,686 

687,097 

219,937 

219,937 

5,933,389 
7,958,159 

22,983,029 

36,874,577 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Machinery and equipment 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

3,768.484 
2,330,438 
9,363,454 

15A62,376 

389,819 
429,534 
963,045 

1,782,398 

219600 

219,600 

3,938,703 
2,759,972 

10,326,499 

17,025,174 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 20,945,041 (1,095,301 ) 337 19,849,403 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 23,213,302 $ (27,141) $ 281,023 $22,905,138 

Business-type activities 
Capital assets, notbeing depreciated 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capita! assets not being depreciated 

$ 381,117 
924,139 

1,305,256 

$ 
189,443 
189,443 

$ 
924,139 
924,139 

$ 381,117 
189,443 
570,560 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Machinery and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

5,847,425 
819,423 

22,358,491 
29,025,339 

205,753 
200,939 

1,228,661 
1,635,353 

81.916 

81,916 

5,971,262 
1,020,362 

23.587,152 
30,578,776 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Machinery and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

2,648,910 
366,205 

10,753,597 
13,768.712 

368,570 
173,397 
635,413 

1,177,380 

81,916 

81,916 

2,935,564 
539,602 

11,389,010 

14,864,176 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 15,256,627 457,973 ~14,600 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $16,561,883 $ 647,416 $ 924,139 $16,285,160 
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS - (Continued) 

Depreciation expensewas charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 

Governmental activities 
General government $ 21,009 
Public safety 137,829 
Public works 1,288,394 
Public activitiesand recreation 335,166 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $1,782,398 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer $ 787,225 
Sanitation 282,991 
Airport 107,164 

Total depreciation expense ~ business-type activities $1,177,380 

NOTE 6: EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN 

A. Plan Description 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a non-traditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(TMRS), an agent mul!iple-employer public employee retirement system. 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the 
City-financedmonetarycredits, with interest. At the date theplan began, the City granted monetary 
credits for service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what 
would have been contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. 
Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a percent (100%, 150%, or 200%) of the 
employee'saccumulated contributions. In addition, the Citycan gran!, as often as annually, another 
type of monetarycredit referred to as an updatedservicecredit which is a theoreticalamountwhich, 
when added to the employee's accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service 
since the planbegan,would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated 
with interest if the current employee contribution rate and the City matching percent had always 
been in existenceand if the employee's salary had alwaysbeen the average of his salary in the last 
three years thatare one year before the effective date. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if 
the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer-financed 
monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in 
the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes. 
Members can retire at age 60 and above with five or more years of service or with twenty years of 
Service regardless of age. A member is vested after five years. 
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN - (Continued) 

B. Contributions 

The contribution rate for the employees is 5%, and the City matching percent is currently 2 to 1, 
both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the 
actuary annually determines the City contribution rate. This rate consists of the normal cost 
contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level 
percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently 
accruing monetary credits due to City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an 
employee's retirement date, not ar the time the employee's contributions are made. The normal 
cost contribution rate is the ectuarialty determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the 
obligation of the City to each employee at the time his retirement becomes effective. The prior 
service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actuarial liability over the remainder of the plan's 
as-year amortization period. The unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining the City 
contribution rate. Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly. Since the City 
needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay 
between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate 
goes into effect (i.e.. December 31, 2007, valuation is effective for rates beginning January 2009). 

C. Annual Pension Cost 

For the employer's fiscal year ending September 30, 2010, the annual pension cost for the TMRS 
plan for its employees was $635,670, and the actual contributions were $635,670. The net pension 
obligation at the beginning and end of the fiscal year was zero. 

D. Actuarial Valuation Information 

Followinq is a tabular summary of actuarial valuation information for the December 31,2009, 
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, valuation dates: 

Actuarial Valuation Information 
12/31/07 12/31/OB 12131/09 

Actuarial cost method projected unit projected unit Projected unit 
credit credit credit 

Amortization method level percent of level percent of level percent of 
payroll payroll payroll 

Amortization period in 
years 30 - closed 29 - closed 28 - closed 

Asset valuation method amortized cost amortized cost 1O-year smoothed 
market 

Investment return 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% 
Projected salary varies by age and varies by age and varies by age and 

increases service service service 
Inflation 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Cost of living adjustments 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 

E. Trend Information 

Information for the three most recent actuarial vakrations for the TMRS plan follows: 

Contributions Required and Contributions Made 
Annual Percentage of 

Year Ended Pension APC Net Pension 
September 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

2010 $635,670 100% $ 
2009 529,444 100% 
2008 489,207 100% 
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN - (Continued) 

E. Trend Information - (Continued) 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
Actuarial UAAL as of 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage
 
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
 

Dale Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
-
(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (e) ((b-a)/e) 

12131/09 $11,981,037 $17,718,960 $5,737,923 67.62% $6,061,315 94.66% 
12131/08 11,436,920 16,659,204 5,222,284 68.65% 5,501,961 94.92% 
12131/07 11,446,750 16,546,570 5,097,820 69.19% 5,436,124 93.78% 
12131/06 11,966,670 15,066,481 3,099,811 79.43% 4,851,045 63.90% 

All assumptions for the December 31,2009 valuations are contained in the 2009 TMRS 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a copy of which may be obtained bywriting to P.O. Box 
149153,Austin, Texas 78714-9153. 

NOTE 7: SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN 

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance 
plan operated by TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by 
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City 
may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before 
November t" of any year to be effective the following January t", 

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the 
employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period 
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other 
postemptoyrnentbenefit", or OPEB. 

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial 
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for 
the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments 
for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retired term life insurance during employees' entire 
careers. 

The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $20,907, 
$21,214, and $20,657, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 

NOTE 8: TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

The Fire Fighter's Pension Commissioner is the administrator of the Texas Emergency Services 
Retirement System (TESRS), a cost sharing multiple-employer pension system established and 
administered by the State of Texas (the "State") to provide pension benefits for emergency services 
personnel who serve without significant monetary remuneration. TESRS is considered a component unit 
of the State of Texas financial reporting entity and is included in the State's financial reports as a pension 
trust fund. At August 31,2010, there were 198 members of fire or emergency services departments 
participating in TESRS. Eligible participants include volunteer emergency services personnel who are 
members in good standing of a participating department. 
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NOTE 8: TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES REnREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description - (Continued) 

At August 31, 2010, TESRS membership consisted of: 

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 2,152 
Terminated Participants Entitled to Benefits but not yet 

receiving them 2,105 
Active Participants (vested and nonvested) ---.1,359 

B 610 

SenateBill 411,65th legislature, RegularSession (1977), created TESRS,andestablished theapplicable 
benefitprovisions. The 791Il Legislature, Regular Session (2005) recodified the provisions and gave the 
TESRS Board of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contribu!lon levels, benefit 
formulas, and eligib,ility requirements by board rule. The benefit provisions include retirement benefits as 
well as death and disability benefits. Members are SO% vested after the tenth year of servIce, with the 
vesting percent increasing 10% for each of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 
100% vested with 15 years of service. 

Upon reaching age 55, eachvested membermay retireand receive a monthly pension equal to his vested 
percent multiplied by six times the governing body's average monthly contribution over the member's 
years of qualified service. For yearsof servicein excess of 15 years, this monthlybenefit is increased at 
the rate of 6.2% compoundedannually. 

On and off duty death benefits and on duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the 
member was engaged in the periormance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits 
include a lump sum amount and continuing monthly payments to a member's surviving spouse and 
dependentchildren. 

Funding Policy 

Contribution provisions were originallyestablished by Senate Bil1411, ss" Legislature, RegularSession 
(1977) andwereamended byboard rule in2006. Nocontributions are required by individualmembersof 
participating departments. The governing bodies of participating departmentsare required to contribute at 
least the minimum prescribed amount per month for each active member and may contribute more. 
Additional contributions may be made bya governingbodyto payfor grantingcredit for service beforethe 
departmentbegan participating inTESRS(prior service). TheState mayalso be required to makeannual 
contributions up to a ljnfted amount to make TESRS actuarially sound. 

Annual Required Contributions 

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not 
actuariallydetermined. Rather, the minimumcontribution provisions weresetbyboard rule. For the fiscal 
year endingAugust 31, 2010, total contributions (dues and prior services) of $2,875,103 were paid into 
TESRS bythe politicalsubdivisions served bythe membervolunteeremergencyservicespersonnel. The 
Statedid notappropriateanymaximum Slate contribution forthe fiscalyearsending August31, 2010and 
2011. Total contributionsmade wereequal to thecontributions required by the Stale statuteandequalto 
the contributions required based on the August 31, 2008 actuarial valuation. 
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NOTE 8: TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM - (Continued) 

Annual Required Contributions ~ (Continued) 

The purpose of the biennial actuarial valuation is to test Ihe adequacy of the contribution arrangement to 
determine jf it is adequate to pay the benefits that are promised. The actuarial valuation as of 
August 31, 2010, revealed the adequacy of the expected contributions from the political subdivisions 
(dues and prior service contributions) together with the actual State appropriations for the fiscal year 
ending August 31, 2010 ($502,941 to help pay the System's administrative expenses) and with the 
assumed continuation of legislative appropriations of 1) the maximum State contribution amount in future 
years as is necessary for the TESRS to have a so-year amortization period, and 2) approximately 
$500,000 each year to help pay for TESRS's administrative expenses. Expected contributions for the 
fiscal year ending August 31, 2011, are less than the contributions required because of the lag in time 
between an actuarial valuation that shows the need for maximum State contribution amounts and the 
appropriation process. 

Without the expected future annual contributions from the State, the System would have an inadequate 
contribution arrangement. 

Actuarial Valuation Information 

Following is a tabular summary of actuarial valuation information for the August 31, 2010 and 
August 31,2008, valuation dates: 

Actuarial Valuation Information 

Actuarial cost method entry age 
Amortization method level dollar, open 
Amortization period in years 6 years 
Asset valuation method market value smoothed by a 5-year 

deferred recognition method with 
a 90% - 110% corridor on market 
value 

Investment return 8.00%, net of expenses 
Projected salary increases nJa 
Inflation 3.50% 
Cost of living adjustment none none 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
Actuarial 
Accrued UAAL 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Llablllty' 
lAALI ~ 

Unfunded 
AAL Funded 

Total 
Members 

p" 
Member 

Date Assets Entry Age _ IUAAL) Ratio Covered Covered 
(a} (b) Ib)~lal (alb) lei (b-a)/(c) 

8/31/2006 $42,268,305 $58,082,828 $15,814,523 72.8% 8,061 s 1,962 
8/31120082 60,987.157 64,227,341 3,240,184 95.0% 8,254 393 
8131/2010

3 64,113,803 79,953,215 15,839,412 80.2% 8.708 1,819 

Notes: 
1 The actuarial accrued liability is based upon the entry age actuarial cost method 
2 Changes in actuarial assumptions and methods, as well as benefit and contribution provisions, were first 

reflected in this valuation. 
3 Changes in actuarial assumptions were reflected in this valuation. 
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NOTE 8: TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM - (Continued) 

Required SupPlementary Information ~ (Continued) 

State contributions to the City's plan for the fiscal year 2010 hasbeen deemed insignificant to the financial 
statements. Therefore, no amounts have been recognized as revenues and expenditures during the 
period. 

Three-Year Trend Information - State-wide 
Annual 

Fiscal YearEnding Required Actual Percentage 
August 31 Contributions Contributions Contributed 

2008 $ 3,160,764~ $ 11,239,3391 356% 
2009 2,698,271 3 2,698,271 100% 
2010 2,8/5,1033 2,875,103 100% 

Noles: 
1 Includes a state contribution of $8,800,000.
 
2 Based on the August 31, 2006, actuarial valuation.
 
3 Based on the August 31, 2008, actuarial valuation. 

NOTE 9: RiSK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of Joss encompassed in the areas of general liabilities, workers' 
compensation claims, and employee health related expenses. The City has purchased general liability 
and workers' compensation insurance to cover potential losses in those areas. The City has entered into 
interlocal agreements with the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool for general liability 
and workers' compensation coverage. Through the payment of contributions to the Texas Municipal 
League Intergovemmental Risk Pool, the City has transferred these risks to the pool. The City has not 
retained any risks other than the deductible and is covered up to the limits of coverage after the 
deductible. Settlements of claims did not exceed insurance coverage for any of the past three years. 

The City has also entered into an interlocal agreement with the Texas Municipal League Group Benefits 
Risk Pool for health insurance for its employees. The City pays the health care premiums for City 
employees. Employees have the option of paying dependent coverage via payroll deductions. The City 
has no liability for any claims incurred by participants in this plan. 
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NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT 

A.	 Changes in long-Term liabilities 

Long-term liability activity forthe yearended September 30, 2010, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental activities 

Bonds and certificates payable 
General obligation bonds 
Certificates of obligation 

Plus deferred amounts: 
Bond premium 

$ 4,920,000 
2,500,000 

119,427 

s 
3,300,000 

23,885 

$ 245,000 
217,500 

95,542 

$ 4,675,000 
5,582,500 

$ 255,000 
295,000 

Total bonds and certificates 
payable 7,539,427 3,300,000 486,385 10,353,042 550,000 

Notes payable 
Capital/eases 
Compensated absences 

4,179,741 
169,897 
169,757 3,854 

266,340 
53,845 

3,913,401 
116,052 
173,611 

230,036 
56,586 

173,611 

Totalgovernmental activity 
long-term liabilities $12,058,822 $ 3,303,854 $ 806,570 $14,556,106 $1,010,233 

Business-type activities 

Bonds and certificates payable 
General obligation bonds 
Certificates of obligation 

Plus deferred amounts: 
Bond premium 

$ 5,220,000 
2,500,000 

50,974 

$ 

114,329 

$1,195,000 
217,500 

23,885 

$ 4,025,000 
2,282,500 

141,418 

$1,205,000 
225,000 

Total bands and certificates 
payable 7,770,974 114,329 1,436,385 6,448,918 1,430,000 

Compensated absences 67,669 3,905 63,764 63,764 

Total business-type activity 
long-term liabilities $ 7,838,643 $ 114,329 $1,440,290 $ 6,512,682 $1,493,764 

General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
majorcapital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge thefull faith and 
creditof the City. The bonds havebeen issued for both governmental and business-type activities. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Term Interest Rate Original Amount 

Refunding Series 2004 2004 - 2024 3,00% - 4.50% $ 6,000,000 
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NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT ~ (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds - (Continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity forgeneral obligation refunding bonds areas follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
Year Prin~ Interest Principal Interest Total 

2011 $ 255,000 $ 196,068 $ 1,230,000 $ 120,719 $ 1,801,787 
2012 265,000 185,230 1,265,000 83,850 1,799,080 
2013 275,000 173,305 1,305,000 45,900 1,799,205 
2014 285,000 160,930 225,000 3,710 674,640 
2015 295,000 150,812 445,812 

2016-2020 1,675,000 572,200 2,247,200 
2021-2025 1,625,000 184,803 1,809,803 

$4,675,000 $ 1,623,348 $ 4,025,000 $ 254,179 $10,577,527 

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

The City also issues combination taxand revenue certificates ofobligation (C.O.'s) to provide funds 
for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities payable from the proceeds of an 
annual ad valorem tax and further payable from ajunior and subordinate pledge of the netrevenues 
of the City's water and sewer system. The C.O.'s have been issued forboth governmental and 
business-type activities. C.O.'s currently outstanding are as follows: 

Term Interest Rate Original Amount 

Certificates of Obligation 2009-2019 3.00%- 3.50% $ 2,500,000 
2009Series 

Certificates ofObligation 2010-2030 4.50% 3,300,000 
2010 Series 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for certificates ofobligation areas follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

2011 $ 295,000 $ 270,638 $ 225,000 $ 72,638 s 863,276 
2012 340,000 211,238 230,000 65,887 847,125 
2013 352,500 199,387 237,500 58,988 848,375 
2014 365,000 187,088 245,000 51,862 848,950 
2015 377,500 174,338 252,500 44,513 848,851 

2016-2020 1,822,500 653,912 1,092,500 95,912 3,664,824 
2021-2025 905,000 378,675 1,283,675 
2026-2030 1,125,000 156,375 1,281,375 

s 5,582,500 s 2,231,651 $ 2,282,500 $ 389,800 $10,486,451 
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NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued) 

Notes Payable 

The City has entered into a note payable agreement with Prosperity Bank. The proceeds from this note 
payable were used to renovate the 16th Street Swimming Pool. Annual installments on this note are 
$53,266 with a maturity date of2017. The note bears interest at 5.074% and has an outstanding balance 
of $307,296 at September 30, 2010. The City has entered into an inter-local agreement with the Bay City 
Independent School District, in which the Bay City Independent School District is responsible for paying 
$16,000 annually of the required installments. 

The City has also entered into a note payable agreement with Prosperity Bank. The proceeds of this note 
were used to purchase various technology equipment. This note bears interest of 5.4%, monthly 
payments of $1,377, and a maturity date of 2016. The balance outstanding at September 30, 2010 was 
$65,941. The General Fund is responsible for servicing this debt. 

The City entered into a note agreement with Wells Fargo Bank. The proceeds from this note were used to 
renovate a training facility. Quarterly installments on this note total $97,953. The note bears interest of 
4.71% and the outstanding balance at September 30, 2010 was $3,520,163. The Community 
Development Corporation, a blended component unit of the City, is responsible for servicing this debt. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the notes payable are as follows: 

Year Principal Interest Total 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

2016-2020 
2021-2025 

$ 280,139 
293,738 
307,998 
322,948 
338,627 

1,715,470 
654,481 

$ 183,289 
169,782 
155,617 
140,764 
125,192 
374,387 

31,187 

$ 463,428 
463,520 
463,615 
463,712 
463,819 

2,089,857 
685,668 

$ 3,913,401 $1,180,218 $ 5,093,619 

Capital Leases
 

The City entered into a capital lease agreement for the purchase of a fire truck. The capital lease is paid
 
by the General Fund.
 

The following is a summary of future lease payments due on the fire truck:
 

2011 $ 56,586 $ 5,907 $ 62,493 
2012 59,466 3,027 62,493 

$ ,,-$_~", $ 124,986116,052 8,934 
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NOTE 11: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

A. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

At times during the fiscal year the various funds of the City were involved in transactions that 
created interfund receivable and payable belances, These transactions related to such things as 
the purchase of goods by one fund on behalfof anotherand the receiptof revenue inone fund that 
belongs to or is designated for another fund. Interfund receivable and payable balances as of 
September 30, 2010, were as folows: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 

General Major Business-type s 42,000 

Nonmajor Governmental Major Business-type 13,556 

Major Business-type Major Business-type 187,119 

$ 242,675 

S, Interfund Transfers 

Each year various funds of the City transfer funds to other funds. Tile most significantoftllese are 
the planned transfers from the City's enterprise funds to specified governmental funds. These 
transfers are intended to provide the necessary resources to meet the operating and debt service 
obligations of the receiving funds. During the current fiscal year, transfers between funds consisted 
of the following: 

Transfers In 

Community 

Constructon Water Nonmajor 
General Projects and Sewer Airport Govt. 

Transfers Out Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total 

General s s s 98,700 s 80,000 $ 112,641 s291 ,341 
Nonmajor Govt. 62,500 62,500 
2010 Capital Acq. 82,260 82,260 
Water and Sewer 75,145 177,686 252,831 

$ 75,145 s 144,760 s 98,700 s 80,000 s 290,327 $688,932 
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NOTE 12: RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED STATEMENTS 

There were various restatements made to the beginning balances afthe governmental activities. The net 
effect of the restatement resulted in an increase in the beginning net assets of $348,594. The 
reslatementwas necessary to correctly reflect various allowance for uncollectible accounts. recording of 
receivables not previously reported and correcting the beginning balance of accrued salaries in the 
governmental activities. In addition, the beginning balance of net assets was also restated in the 
business-type activities to correctly reflect the amounts recorded as accrued salaries in the previous year. 
This restatement caused a decrease in the beginning balance of $17,532. 

NOTE 13: ISSUED BUT NON·EFFECTIVE PRONOUNCEMENT 

GASS Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions," (the 
"Statement") was issued in February 2009. The Statement eliminates the requirement to report 
governmental fund balances as reserved, unreserved, or designated. It replaces those categories with 
five possible classifications of governmental fund balances - nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned. The Statement also redefines the governmental funds for clarity and to be 
consistent with these new fund balance classifications. The provisions of the Statement are effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2010. 

NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY 

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The combined financial statements of Bay City Gas Company (A Component Unit of the City of Bay 
City, Texas) (the "Company") have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the United States of America. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

1. Reporting Entity 

The Company is a component unit of the City of Bay City, Texas, and designated profits are 
used for capital improvements of the City. The Company is a single purpose government 
engaged in a business-type activity. The Company has no oversight responsibility for any other 
governmental entity since no entities are considered to be controlled by or dependent upon 
them. The Board of Trustees consists of the current Mayor of the City of Bay City, Texas, and 
two lifetime members. The surviving life trustee appoints new members. The Board of 
Trustees has the authority to significantly influence operations and to hire management. They 
are responsible and accountable for all fiscal matters. 

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting, and Measurement Focus 

Governments engaged in a single business-type activity present only the enterprise fund 
financial statements, as they would only mirror the government-wide statements. The required 
statements under GASB No. 34 are the statement of net assets, statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in fund net assets, and statement of cash flows. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting. and Measurement Focus - (Continued) 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such 85 charges for services, result from exchange 
transactionsassociated with the principal activityof the fund. Exchange transactionsare those 
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, 
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancu'ary 
activities. 

The Company isa single purpose governmentand hasonlyone fund to report, theUtilityFund, 
which is an enterprise fund. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus. The proprietary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash 
flows take place. 

When the Company incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and 
unrestricted resources may be used, it is the Company's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources. 

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Fundsand 
Other GovernmentalEntities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," all proprietary funds will 
continue to follow FinancialAccounting StandardsBoard (FASB) standards issuedon or before 
November30, 1989. However, from that date forward, proprietary funds will havethe option of 
either 1) choosing not to apply future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier 
pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new FASB pronouncements unless they conflict 
with GASB guidance. The Company has chosen not to apply future FASB standards. 

3. Financial Statement Accounts 

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highlyliquid investments are considered to be 
cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or Jess when purchased. 

b. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The Company records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase 
method of accounting for inventory. 

Certain payments tovendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

A. Summary of SignificantAccounting Policies ~ (Continued) 

3. Financial Statement Accounts - (Continued) 

G. Capital Assets 

Purchasedor constructedcapital assets are reportedat cost or estimated historical cost. 
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materiallyextend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $1,000 is 
used. 

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Estimated 
Assat Class Useful Lives 
Utilitysystem 20-40 
Buildings 40 
Furniture and fixtures 7-10 
Vehicles 5-10 
Equipment 3-10 

d. Receivable and Payable Balances 

The Companybelievesthat sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided 
in the financialstatements to avoidthe obscuring of significantcomponents byaggregation. 
Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances. The accounts 
receivable have been reduced by $31,771 in allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

Thereare nosignificant receivables which are notscheduledfor collectionwithin one year 
of year-end. 

e. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of 
management's estimates. 

4. Budgetary Data 

Although proprietary funds are not required to adopt an annual budget, the Company has 
chosen to prepareandadopt annual budgets to aid in planningand monitoringof its activities. 
There were some insignificant variances in budget to actual as shown in the supplementary 
schedule. The Companydoes not adopt amounts to be distributed to the City annually. 

B. Deposits and Investments 

The Company's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository 
contract. The depositorybank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the Company's agent bank 
approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect Company funds on a day-to-day 
basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the 
extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of FDIC insurance. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Conlinued) 

B. Deposits and Investments ~ (Continued) 

Cash Deposits: 

At March 31, 2010, the carrying amount of the Company's deposits (cash. certificates of deposit, 
and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $992,956 and the 
bank balance was $1,064,109. The Company's cash deposits at March 31, 2010 and during the 
year ended March31, 2010, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held 
by the Company's agent bank in the Company's name. 

Investments: 

The Companyis required by Government Code Chapter2256, The PublicFunds InvestmentAct, to 
adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written: primarily 
emphasize safetyof principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, and maturity 
and the quality and cepability of investment management; and include a list of the types of 
authorized investments in which the investing entity's funds may be invested; and the maximum 
allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity. 

The Public Funds InvestmentAct (the "Act") requiresanannualauditof investment practices. Audit 
procedures in this areaconducted as a part of the auditof the generalpurpose financial statements 
disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of 
appropriatepolicies, theCompany adhered to the requirementsof theAct. Additionally, investment 
practices of the Companywere in accordance with local policies. 

The Act determinesthe typesof investments, whichare allowable for theCompany. These include, 
with certain restrictions, 1)obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S.agencies, andthe Stateof 
Texas, 2) certificatesof deposit, 3) certain municipalsecurities, 4) moneymarketsavings accounts, 
5) repurchase agreements, 6) bankers acceptances, 7) mutua! funds, 8) investment pools, 
9) guaranteed investment contracts, and 10) common trust funds. 

The Company's investments at March 31, 2010 are shown below. 

Investmentor Investment Type Maturity Rating Fair Value % of Portfolio 
Certificates of Deposit- Participating < 1 year FDIC $ 489,874 33.46% 
Certificates of Deposit - Nonparticipating < 1 year FDIC 406,036 27.74% 
Federal Home Loan Bank ;:. 5 years Aaa 99,313 6.78% 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage ;:. 5 years Aaa 100,290 6.85% 
Federal National Mortgage Assn ;:. 5 years Aaa 99,281 6.78% 
Indiana Michigan Power Co Notes ;:. 5 years Bbb 42,891 2.93% 
GE Cap Corp Sr Notes ;:. 5 years Aa+ 75,950 519% 
GNMAPool ;:. 5 years 5,383 0.37% 
Caterpillar Fin Svcs Group A-1 102,686 7,01% 
UBS Ag PfdTr IV N/A Bbb- 42,250 2.89% 
Total Investments $ 1,463,954 100,00% 

Included in Cash: 

TexPool NIA Aaa $ B57
 
USS Money Market Funds N/A Aaa 84B,204
 
Edward Jones MoneyMarket Funds N/A Aaam 451,732
 

$ 1,300,793 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

B, Deposits and Investments - (Continued) 

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks: 

GASB StatementNo. 40 requiresa determination 85 to whether the Companywas exposed 10 the 
following specific investmentrisksat year-end and if 50, the reporting of certain related disclosures: 

1. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to 
give an indication of credit risk. The Company policy is to exercise judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, thai persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in 
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of principal as well as the probable income to be derived. The ratings for 
investments owned at year-end are included in the table above, 

2. Concentration of Credit Risk 

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single 
issuer. It is Company policy to diversify investments based on maturity and type of instrument. 
The Company policy places no limit on the amount that may be invested in anyone issuer. At 
year end, the Company had several investments in excess of 5% as shown in the table above. 

3. Interest Rate Risk 

This is Ihe risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The Company limits its exposure to interest rate risk by diversifying its investments 
by security type and institution. It restricts maturities to three years on certificates of deposit, 
ninety days on money market mutual funds, less than two years on most other investments, 
with the exception of obligation of governmental entities or their agencies, which can be up to 
thirty years. 

Investment Accounting Policy 

The Company's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating 
interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest­
earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an 
investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other 
factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal 
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which 
have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means 
that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable 
certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

B. Deposits and Investments - (Continued) 

Public Funds Inyestment Pools 

Public funds investment pools in Texas (the "Pools") are established under the authority of the 
Interlacal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the 
provisions oflhe Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to other provisions 
oflhe Act designed to promoteliquidityand safetyof principal, theAct requires Pools to: 1) havean 
advisoryboard composed of participants in the pooland other persons who do nothavea business 
relationship with thepooland are qualified to advisethe pool; 2) maintaina continuousrating of no 
lower than A/J.A or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at [east one nationally recognized rating 
service; and 3) maintain the market value of its underlying investment portfolio within one half of 
one percent of the value of its shares. 

The Company's investments in the Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value 
per share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are 
reported at share value. A 2a7-Jike pool is one which is not registered with the SEC as an 
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner 
consistentwilh the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. TexPool is a 2a7-tike 
pool govemed by the State Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

C. Capital Asset~ 

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31. 2010, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balances 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

$ $ 17,790 

17,790 

$ 13,058 

13.058 

$ 4,732 

4,732 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Utility plant 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Meters and requtators 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

2,076,325 
522,800 
590,181 
144,737 
729,755 

4,063,798 

13,058 

26,733 

39,791 

8,860 

240,634 

729,755 

979,249 

2,080,523 
522,800 
376,280 
144,737 

3,124,340 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Utility plant 
BUildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Meters and regulators 

Total accumulated depreciation 

(1,123,043) 
(259,050) 
(256,475) 

(69,228) 
(475,765) 

(2,183,561 ) 

(51,691) 
(13,240) 
(19,418) 
(13,203) 

(97,552) 

(1,002) 

(67,152) 

(475,765) 

(543,919) 

(1,173,732) 
(272,290) 
(208,741) 
(82,431) 

(1,737,194) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,880,237 (57,761) 435,330 1,387,146 

BUSiness-type activities capital assets, net $1,880,237 $ (39,971) $ 448,388 $1,391,878 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

C. Capital Assets - (Continued) 

Depreciation of $97,552 was charged to the only function of providing natural gas. 

o. Hisk Management 

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of 
assets, errorsand omissions, injuriesto employees.and naturaldisasters. During fiscalyear 2010, 
the Company purchased commercial insurance to cover general liabilities. There were no 
significant reductions in coveragein the past fiscal year and there were no settlements exceeding 
insurance coverage for anyof the past three fiscal years. 

E. Pension Plan 

1. Plan Description 

The Company provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees byparticipating in the 
City of Bay City's non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan with the state­
wide TMRS, an agent, multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan 
provisions that have been adopted by the Company are within the options available in the 
governing state statutes of TMRS. 

Since the Company participates with the City of Bay City, information related to the actuarial 
valuation of assets. accrued liability, funded ratio, unfunded liability, covered payroll and 
unfunded actuarial liability as a percentage of covered payroll is included in the totals for the 
City of Bay City, Texas. This information may be obtained by writing the City of Bay City, 
Texas, 1901 5th Street, Bay City, Texas 77414. 

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides 
detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions 
used by the System. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, 
Austin, TX. 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available on 
TMRS's website at WoNW.TMRS.com. 

The plan provislons are adopted by the governing body of the Company, within the options 
available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the Company were as 
follows: 

Plan Year Plan Year 
2008 2009 

Employee deposit rate 5.0% 5.0% 
Matching ratio (Company to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1 
Years required for vesting 5 5 
Service retirement eligibility 60/5, 0125 60/5, 0125 
(expressed as age/years of service) 
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating, 100% Repeating, 

Transfers Transfers 
Annuity Increase 70% of CPI 70% of CPI 
(to retirees) Repeating Repeating 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

E. ~ensjon Plan ~ (Continued) 

2. ~ontributions 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each Company is determined 
annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cast method. This rate 
consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution tate, which 
is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution 
rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated annually; the prior 
service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the 
applicable period for that Company. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates 
include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated 
Service Credits and Annuity Increases. 

The Company contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarialty determined rate. Both the 
employees and the Company make contributions monthly. Since the Company needs to know 
its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the 
actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate 
goes into effect. 

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2009 were determined as part of the 
December 31, 2006 and 2007 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest 
actuarial valuation, December 31,2008, also follows: 

Valuation Date 12131/2006 12131/2007 12/31/2008 
Actuarial Cost Method Unit Credit Projected Unit Projected Unit 

Credit Credit 
Amortization Method Level % of Level % of Level % of 

Payroll Payroll Payroll 
Remaining Amortization Period 25 years, 30 years, 29 years, 

open period open period open period 
Asset Valuation Method amort cost amort cost amort cost 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return * 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 
Projected Salary Increases * Varies by age Varies by age Varies by age 

and service and service and service 
* Includes Inflation at 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Cost-oHiving Adjustments N/A 2.1% 2.1% 

The current rale is 11.19% of annual covered payroll. The Company's contributions to the 
TMRS for the years ending March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $47,328, $50,337 and 
$45,OB1, respectively, and were equar to the required contributions for each year. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Conlinued) 

F. Health Care Coverage 

During the year ended March 31, 2010, employees of the Company were covered by a health 
insuranceplan (the "Plan"). The Company paid premiums of $501 per month per employee to the 
Plan. Employees, at theiroption, authorized payrollwithholdingsto paypremiums for dependents. 
All premiums were paid to a third party administrator, acting on behalf of the licensed insurer. The 
Planwas authorized by Article 3.51~2, Texas InsuranceCode andwas documented bycontractual 
agreement 

The contractbetween the Companyand the third partyadministratoris renewable July1,2010, and 
terms of coverage and premium costs are included in the contractual provisions. 

G. Health Reimbursement Arranqement 

In an effort to keep health insurance premiums ata reasonable level, the Company chose to go with 
a higher deductible plan at $4,000 per employee. As a result of the higher deductible, they 
established a health reimbursement arrangement under Section 105 of the Internal Revenue Code 
in which they contribute an actuarial determined amount per month to be used to meet an 
employee's deductible beyond the first $1,000 and up to the $4,000 deductible. The Plan may be 
terminated by the Company at any time with any excess contributions reverting back to the 
Company. The Plan is administered independently of the Company by Total Administrative 
Services Corporation. 

H. Restricted Asset~ 

Cash has been restricted for the payment of customer deposits. 

l. Nonmonetary Transactions 

It is Company policy to donate gas consumed by City owned property and a fixed amount for 
volunteer firemen. At March 31,2010, the amount of gas at retail prices consumed by City property 
was $32,369 and the fixed amount donated to the City on behalf of the volunteer firemen amounted 
to $17,550 for total donated gas of $49,919. 

J. Change in Accounting Policy 

The Company has changed its accounting policy from depreciating meters, regulators and 
transponders to placing them in inventory and expensing them once they are placed in the system. 
The Company feels the cost of the meters, regulators, and transponders Indivlduauy do not meet 
the capitalization threshold. Furthermore, they are pulled from the system, repaired and/or replaced 
on a routine basis making it difficult to track for capitalization purposes. 

As a result of the change in accounting policy, capital assets were written down $963,750 and 
related accumulated depreciation was written down $534,021. The net result of $429,729 is 
recorded as prior period adjustment. 
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NOTE 14: BAY CITY GAS COMPANY - (Continued) 

K. Prior Period Adjustment 

The statute of limitations has run on a disputed accounts payable bill from 2003 with Cleco 
Corporation. As a result, a prior period adjustment of $81,006 has been made to the current year 
equity. 

As noted in footnote J, a prior period adjustment of $429,729 has been made to equity as the result 
of a change in accounting policy for meters, regulators and transponders. 
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Required Supplementary Information 





CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
Fortheyearended September 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes 
Other taxes 

Licenses and permits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Fees and charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

s 

Original 
BUdget 

3,175,000 
4,090,000 

9,700 
252,000 
328,200 

71,212 
12,000 

724,670 

8,662,782 

s 

Final 
Budget 

3,175,000 
3,952,500 

9,700 
397,500 
353,700 
131,454 

769,670 

8,789,524 

s 

Actual 

3,179,174 
3,926,493 

9,813 
402,318 
308,136 
156,826 

5,352 
834,289 

8,822,401 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

s 4,174 
(26,007) 

113 
4,818 

(45,564) 
25,372 

5,352 
64,619 

32,877 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Public activities and recreation 
Cultural arts and public benefits 
Debt service 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues oyer expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year, as restated 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

1,805,040 
3,530,438 
1,048,492 
1,170,482 

91,500 
504,156 

8,150,108 

512,674 

75,145 
(293,341) 
(218,196) 

294,478 

1,576,571 

1,871,049 

1,925,578 
3,630,814 
1,090,455 
1,248,215 

119,500 
556,766 

8,571,328 

218,196 

75,145 
(293,341) 

(218,196) 

~76,571 

$ 1,576,571 $ 

1,859,213 
3,692,061 
1,050,523 
1,182,124 

98,675 
566,648 

8,449,244 

373,157 

75,145 
(291,341) 

(216,196) 

156,961 

1,576,571 

1,733,532 

66,365 
(61,247) 
39,932 
66,091 
20,825 
(9,882) 

122,084 

154,961 

2,000 

2,000 

156,961 

$ 156,961 

The accornpanyinq notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO REqUiRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
September 30,2010 

NOTE 1; BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The City annually adopts buoqets that are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

For the year ended September 30, 2010 the City complied with budgetary restrictions at all 
departmental levels except the following. The following table details these variances: 

Final Negative 
General Fund - Department BUdget Actual Variance 

City secretary $ 115,365 $ 134,561 $ (19,196) 
Administration and council 187,548 194,398 (6,850) 
Municipal court 228,485 246,864 (18,379) 
Police 3,382,324 3,453,801 (71,477) 
City service center 56,629 63,851 (7,222) 
Library 267,570 282,363 (14,793) 
Debt service principal 324,719 334,719 (10,000) 
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Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules 





CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNOS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2010 

Special Revenue Funds 

Civic and Disaster 
Cultural Arts Recovery 

Fund Fund 

Street 
Maintenance 

Capital 
Project 
Fund 

Debt 
Service Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net) 

Taxes 
Duefrom other funds 
Total assets 

$ 130,728 

30,218 

$ 160,946 

$ 96,961 

13,556 
$ 110,517 

$ 19,532 

$ 19,532 

$ 

$ 

14,34B 

8,839 

23,lS7 

$ 

$ 

261,569 

39,057 
13,556 

314,182 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Security deposits 
Accrued interest 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

$ 29,888 
20,998 

50,886 

$ $ $ 

B,917 
8,839 

17,756 

$ 29,8B8 
20,998 
8,917 
8,839 

68,642 

Fund balances 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total fund balances 
110,060 

__110,060 
110,517 
110,517 

19,532 
19,532 

5,431 
5,431 

245,540 
245,540 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 160,946 S 110,517 $ 19,532 $ 23,187 $ 314,182 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENOITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
Forthe year ended September 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Property taxes 
Hotel ~ motel tax 

Fees and charges for services 
Investment income 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Special Revenue Funds 

Civic and Disaster 
Cultural Arts Recovery 

Fund Fund 

$ s 
419,373 

65,900 

574 
7,101 110,517 

492,948 110,517 

Street 
Maintenance 

Capital 
Project 
Fund 

$ 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

$ 187,707 

59 

187,766 

Total 

187,707 
419,373 

65,900 

633 
117,618 
791,231 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Cultural arts and public benefits 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

545,117 

545,117 
157,600 
157,600 

217,500 
80,162 

297,662 

545,117 

217,500 
80,162 

157,600 

1,000,379 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (52,169) 110,517 (157,600) (109,896) (209,148) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(62,500) 
(62,500) 

175,000 

175,000 

115,327 

115,327 

290,327 
(62,500) 

227,827 

Net change in fund balances (114,669) 110,517 17,400 5,431 18,679 

Fund balances al beginning of year 224,729 2,132 226,861 

Fund balances at end of year s 110,060 $ 110,517 $ 19,532 $ 5,431 $ 245,540 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2010 
With comparative totals forSeptember30, 2009 

2010 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,929,736 $ 1,607,636 
Receivables (net) 

Accounts 68,189 40,424 
Taxes 569,585 277,077 

Due from other governments 266,530 240,734 
Due from other funds 42,000 503,853 

Prepaid expenditures 24,824 

Total assets s 2,900,864 $ 2,669,724 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable s 376,216 $ 162,016 
Accrued expenditures 229,175 320,668 
Due to other funds 395,373 
Due to other governments 55,463 
Deferred revenue 506,478 215,096 

Total liabilities 1,167,332 1,093,153 

Fund balances 
Reserved for prepaid expenditures 24,824 
Unreserved 

Undesignated 1,708,708 1,576,571 

Total fund balances 1,733,532 1,576,571 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,900,864 s 2,669,724 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OFREVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET(GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
Forthe year ended September 30, 2010 
With comparative totals forthe year ended September 30, 2009 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Property lax 
Sales tax 
Mixed beverage tax 
Franchise tax 

Total taxes 

Other revenues 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Feesand charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City secretary 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Total city secretary 

City general services 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

Total general services 

Administration and council 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs andmaintenance 
Other services and charges 

Total administration andcouncil 

Final
 
Budget
 

s 3,175,000 
3,060,000 

17,500 
875,000 

__7,127,500 

9,700 
397,500 
353,700 
131,454 

769,670 

1,662,024 

8,789,524 

89,855 
10,720 
14,790 

_----'-15,365 

12,000 
10,500 
13,000 

985,759 

1,021,259 

177,548 
4,100 

400 
5,500 

187,548 
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2010 

Actual 

s 3,179,174 
3,052,300 

13,443 
860,750 

7,105,667 

9,813 
402,318 
308,136 
156,826 

5,352 
834,289 

1,716,734 

8,822,401 

104,321 
14,256 
15,984 

134,561 

15,685 
6,679 
9,826 

904,206 

936,396 

181,462 
6,002 

297 
6,637 

194,398 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2009 

Actual 

s 4,174 
(7,700) 
(4,057) 

(14,250) 
(21,833) 

s 3,059,302 
3,455,757 

17,984 
756,851 

7,289,894 

113 
4,818 

(45,564) 
25,372 

5,352 
64,619 

13,033 
254,034 
183,385 
180,652 

10,626 
996,865 

54,710 1,638,595 

32,877 8,928,489 

(14,466) 
(3,536) 
(1,194) 

71,064 
5,076 
6,235 

(19,196) 82,375 

(3,685) 
3,821 
3,174 

81,553 

83,212 
10,262 
12,995 

680,849 

84,863 787,318 

(3,914) 
(1,902) 

103 
(1,137) 

159,384 
4,725 
1,243 
5,845 

(6,850) 171,197 

(continued) 



CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET(GAAPBASIS) AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended September 30, 2010 
With comparative totafs for theyear ended September30, 2009 

2010 2009 

Variance 

EXPENDITURES - (CONTINUED) 
General government - (continued) 

Human resources 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Capital outlay 

Final 
Budget 

$ 36,544 
6,300 
1,200 

29,000 

Actual 

$ 27,148 
8,238 
1,885 

27,178 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 9,396 
(1,938) 

(685) 
1,822 

$ 

Actual 

118,082 
5,996 
1,979 

Total human resources 73,044 64,449 8,595 126,057 

Municipal court 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

132,085 
6,500 
3,000 

86,900 

114,558 
6,998 
1,808 

123,500 

17,527 
(498) 

1,192 
(36,600) 

239,361 
8,530 
2,651 

58,115 

Total municipal court 228,485 246,864 (18,379) 308,657 

Finance 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 
Capital outlay 

284,777 
6,100 
1,000 
3,000 
5,000 

271,164 
5,916 

4,473 
992 

13,613 
184 

1,000 
(1,473) 
4,008 

243,318 
5,389 

579 
5,387 

Total finance 299,877 282,545 17,332 254,673 

Total general government 1,925,578 1,859,213 66,365 1,730,277 

Public safety 
Police 

Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

Capital outlay 

3,022,267 
89,583 
29,110 

241,364 

3,046,039 
97,488 
23,752 

247,205 
39,317 

(23,772) 
(7,905) 
5,358 

(5,841) 
(39,317) 

2,711,123 
42,867 
26,393 

238,856 
41,943 

Total police 3,382,324 3,453,801 (71,477) 3,061,182 

Fire 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 
Capital outlay 

37,672 
11,500 
34,500 
50,500 
15,000 

36,372 
6,738 

29,543 
57,295 
15,281 

1,300 
4,762 
4,957 

(6,795) 
(281) 

36,142 
10,982 
46,219 
66,912 

Total fire 149,172 145,229 3,943 160,255 

(continued) 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCE 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
Forthe year ended September 30, 2010 
With comparative totals for the year ended September 30, 2009 

2010 2009 
Variance 

EXPENDITURES - (CONTINUED) 
Public safety - (continued) 

Animal impoundment 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

Final 
BUdget 

$ 76,606 
3,700 
2,060 

14,750 

Actual 

$ 74,029 
4,319 

673 
13,610 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 4,779 
(619) 

1,167 
940 

$ 

Actual 

66,992 
3,675 
1,650 
7,226 

Totalanimal impoundment 99,316 93,031 6,267 79,945 

Total public safety 3,630,614 3,692,061 (61,247) 3,301,362 

Public works 
Streets 

Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

602,760 
95,900 

155,500 
36,275 

780,401 
93,637 

151,643 
24,642 

22,379 
2,263 
3,657 

11,433 

795,945 
72,069 

141,987 
61,481 

Total streets 1,090,455 1,050,523 39,932 1,071,462 

Total public works 1,090,455 1,050,523 39,932 1,071,482 

Public activities and recreation 
City service center 

Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

36,949 
3,000 
3,000 

13,660 

35,791 
3,864 
6,652 

17,524 

1,158 
(884) 

(3,652) 
(3,644) 

34,012 
3,280 
1,695 

17,206 

Total city service center 56,629 63,651 (7,222) 56,393 

Parks and recreation 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

380,200 
27,500 
56,760 

258,165
---­

272,640 
36,663 
69,976 

300,707 

107,560 
(9,363) 

(13,216) 
(42,542) 

346,705 
42,363 
64,314 

236,044 

Total parks and recreation 722,625 660,206 42,419 691,426 

Riverside park 
Personnel services 
Supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other services and charges 

65,525 
6,140 

16,420 
43,440 

80,979 
8,134 

17,461 
38,491 

4,546 
6 

959 
4,949 

75,552 
9,413 
6,499 

36,457 

Total riverside park 155,525 145,065 10,460 129,921 

(continued) 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended September 30, 2010 
With comparative totals for the year ended September 30, 2009 

2010 

EXPENDITURES - (CONTINUED) 
Public activities and recreation ~ (continued) 

Library 

Personnel services 

Final 
BUdget 

$ 267,570 

Actual 

$ 282,363 

Total library 267,570 282,363 

Teen Court 
Personnel services 
Other services and charges 

34,183 
11,683 ___10,639 

Total teen court 45,866 10,639 

Total public activities and recreation 1,248,215 __1,182,124 

Cultural arts and public benefits 

Cultural arts and public benefits 
Other services and charges 119,500 98,675 

Total cultural arts and public benefits 119,500 98,675 

Debt service 
Principal 

Interest and fiscal charges 

324,719 
232,047 

334.719 
231,929 

Total debt service 556,766 566,648 

Total expenditures 8,571,328 8,449,244 

Variance 
Positive 

~egative) 

2009 

Actual 

s (14,793) 

(14,793) 

34,183 
1,044 

35,227 

66,091 

$ 245,740 

245,740 

29,579 
5,305 

34,884 

1,158,364 

20,825 

20,825 

144,610 

144,610 

(10,000) 
118 

(9,882) 

122,084 

320,377 
246,440 

566,817 

7,972,932 

Excess (deficiency)of revenues 
over expenditures 218,196 373,157 154,961 955,557 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

75,145 
1293,341) 

75,145 
(291,341 ) 2,000 

94,947 
~383,683) 

Total other financing sources (uses! (218,196) (216,196) 2,000 (288,736) 

Net change in fund balance 156,961 156,961 666,821 

Fund balance at beginning of year, as restated 1,576,571 1,576,571 909,750 

Fund balance at end of year s 1,576,571 s 1,733,532 s .56,961 s 1,576,571 
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CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 
NDNMAJDR GOVERNMENTAL FUND - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
Forthe yearended September 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 

Current taxes 
Panalty and interest 

Investment income 

Total revenues 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

183,335 

183,335 

$ 

2010 

Actual 

185,876 
1,831 

59 

187,766 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 2,541 
1,831 

59 

4,431 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
overexpenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 

Netchange in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year s 

217,500 
81,162 

298,662 

(115,327) 

115,327 

$ 

217,500 
80,162 

297,662 

(109,896) 

115,327 

5,431 

5,431 

1,000 

1,000 

5,431 

5,431 

$ 5,431 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAHERS BASED ON AN
 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

The Honorable Mayor and Members
 
of the City Council
 

C}ty of Bay City, Texas
 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bay City, Texas (the "City") as of and for the year 
endad September 30,2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated March 3, 2011 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpq.se of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matte'lrs 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinon. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government AUditing Standards_ 
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The Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and City Council, 
others within the organization, and other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 3, 2011 
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